
 

 

 

February 26th, 2018 

Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 

(dba) Camden County Developmental 
Disability Resources 

Open Session Board Meeting 



Agenda 



Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
d/b/a Camden County Developmental Disability Resources 

100 Third Street 
Camdenton, MO 65020 

 

Tentative Agenda for Open Session Board Meeting on February 26th, 2018, 4:00 PM 
 

This Board Meeting will be held at: 
 

255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive 
 

Camdenton, MO 65020 
 

Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
Approval of Agenda 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Meeting Minutes for January 22nd, 2018 
 
Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 

 
• CLC Monthly Reports 

• LAI Monthly Reports 

• January 2018 Support Coordination Report 

• January 2018 CARF Reports 

• January 2018 Employment Report 

• January 2018 Agency Economic Report 

• December 2017 Credit Card Statement 
• Resolutions 2018-8, 2018-9, 2018-10, 2018-11, & 2018-12 

 

Speakers/Guests 

• NONE 

Monthly Reports 
 

• Children’s Learning Center (CLC) 
• Lake Area Industries (LAI) 

Old Business for Discussion 

• Local Housing Initiative 

 
New Business for Discussion 
 

• New TCM Contract 
 

January Support Coordination Report 
 
January CARF Reports 
 
January Employment Report 
 
January Agency Economic Report 
 



 
 
December 2017 Credit Card Statement 
 
Discussion & Conclusion of Resolution: 
 

1. Resolution 2018-8:  Approval of Amended Policy #31 
2. Resolution 2018-9:  Approval of Amended Policy #17 
3. Resolution 2018-10:  OATS Facility Use Agreement & Addendum 
4. Resolution 2018-11:  CLC Facility Use Agreement & Addendum 
5. Resolution 2018-12:  LRA Agreement with Crescent Associates, LP 

 
Public Comment 
 

Pursuant to ARTICLE IV, “Meetings”, Section 5. Public Comment: 
 
“The Board values input from the public. There shall be opportunity for comment by the public during the 
portion of the Board agenda designated for “Public Comment”. Public comment shall be limited to no 
more than 3 minutes per person to allow all who wish to participate to speak. It is the policy of the Board 
that the Board shall not respond to public comment at the Board meeting.” 
 
“Only comments related to agency-related matters will be received, however such comments need not be 
related to specific items of the Board’s agenda for the meeting. The Board shall not receive comments 
related to specific client matters and/or personnel grievances, which are addressed separately per Board 
policies and procedures.” 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting: 
Ed Thomas, CCDDR Executive Director 
5816 Osage Beach Parkway, Suite 108, Osage Beach, MO  65065 
Office:  573-693-1511          Fax:  573-693-1515        Email:  director@ccddr.org 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

January 22nd, 2018  
 Open Session Minutes 



  CAMDEN COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITY RESOURCES 
Open Session Minutes of January 22, 2018 

 
Members Present Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  
 

Members Absent Brian Willey  
 
Others Present Ed Thomas, Executive Director 
 
Guests Present           Natalie Couch, Lillie Smith, (LAI) 
   Susan Daniels (CLC) 
   Jeanna Booth, Marcie Vansyoc, Connie Baker,  

Myrna Blaine, Linda Simms (CCDDR) 
 

Approval of Agenda  
 
Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the agenda as presented. 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers 

 
    NO:    None 
 
Approval of Open Session Board Minutes for December 18th, 2017 
 
Motion by Shanna Weber, second Suzanne Perkins, to approve the December 18th, 2017  
Open Session Board Meeting Minutes as presented. 

 
    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello  
 
    NO:    None 
 

ABSTAIN:    Angela Sellers, because she was not present at the  
                         December 18, 2017, board meeting. 
 
Approval of Closed Session Board Minutes for December 18th, 2017 
 
Motion by Shanna Weber, second Suzanne Perkins, to approve the December 18th, 2017  
Closed Session Board Meeting Minutes as presented. 

 
    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello  
 
    NO:    None 
 
                          ABSTAIN:   Angela Sellers, because she was not present at the  

          December 18, 2017, board meeting. 



Acknowledgement of Distributed Materials to Board Members 
   

• FY 2016 Final Audit Report 
• CLC Monthly Reports 
• LAI Monthly Reports 
• December 2017 Support Coordination Report 
• December  2017 CARF Reports 
• December  2017 Employment Report 
• December2017 Agency Economic Report 
• November 2017 Credit Card Statement 
• Resolution 2017-74, 2018-1, 2018-2, 2018-3, 2018-4, 2018-5, 2018-6, 2018-7 

 
Speakers/Guests 
 

• Jo L. Moore – Evers & Company CPA’s, LLC: Presentation of the FY 2016 Final Audit 
Report 

 
Jo L. Moore presented the audit and conversed with the Board about the audit.  The basis for 
meeting accepted accounting principles were also discussed, while including information on 
how audit report statements are derived and what they reflect.  Jo also explained the 
expectations of the auditors.     

 
 
Motion by Lisa Jackson, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the 2016 Audit Report as presented. 

 
    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  
 
    NO:    None 
 
Monthly Reports 
 
Lake of the Ozarks Developmental Center (LODC) 
Marilyn Martin 
 
No LODC representative present. 
 
Children’s Learning Center (CLC)   
Susan Daniels 
 
CLC is “rockin”.  Enrollment is high with 31 kiddos and agency has a waiting list.  Absenteeism is bad 
due to flu and bad weather.  CLC received $2,150 from the Frosty Float and $500 from a Wal-Mart 
grant.  Pizza for a purpose will be March 2nd and teacher work day is March 9th.  CLC will be hiring 2 
new aides.  Lisa Jackson complimented Susan on her great ability with fund raising events. 
 
 
 
 



Lake Area Industries (LAI)  
Natalie Couch 
 
LAI audit will be February 5.  Net income for December was $6800.  The annual net income reflects 
a $60,000 increase. It was a good year.  January has started off slow due to receiving Laker Tackle 
boxes late.  Six quotes for new jobs have been issued for the year.  Foam is not doing a lot due to cold 
weather and will probably not be a money maker.  Shredding will be done in January.  Flowers for the 
Garden Center have been ordered and the center will open April 7. The greenhouse equipment was 
sold for $15,000.  LAI hosted the annual employee Christmas party, provided a DJ, and lots of food, 
which made for a good time for the employees. Lisa mentioned the 10 employees who had been laid 
off; Natalie is hoping they will return to work within the next few weeks. 
 
Old Business for Discussion 
 

• CCDDR/LAI Joint Committee Meetings (Update) 
 
The last 4 to 5 years were looked at.  Numbers were not as bad as they looked as a net income shows 
about a $200,000 turn around going from negative to positive.  Communications have been much 
better. 
 

• Transportation – LOTC (Update) 
 
Transportation is kicking off well.  Morgan and Miller counties SB 40’s approached their boards to 
supplement transportation in their counties.  Miller County Health Department will be issuing $15k to 
$20k grant opportunities, which can be used for transportation.  LOTC is expected to apply.  Funding 
may be available for a consistent deviated route for the tri-county area.  The OATS office in the 
Keystone facility will be for dispatching tri-county area only.   
 

• Arc of Missouri Statewide Victimization Public Awareness Campaign (Update) 
 
The council will offer a no cost grant extension to September 30th.  Ed met with Senator Riddle about 
victimization issues.  PSA’s will launch in March.  Human Trafficking news is finally starting to 
reach ears of the Legislators - a senator in St. Louis is sponsoring a bill regarding human trafficking.   
 

• MACDDS (Updates) 
 
The legislative session will be very busy this year.  February and March will be busy going back and 
forth to the Capital. 
 
New Business for Discussion 
 

• Local Housing Initiative 
 
The first meeting, which centered on universal housing design concepts, was held on the 19th with 
realtors, developers and contractors attending.  The concept is catching on with St. Charles and 
Springfield being very active.  We are trying to promote the development of open floor plans, no 
wasted space, and single or multifamily homes.  We are presently working with Boone County 
Family Resources to get some of their designs. 
 



December Support Coordination Report 
 
At December’s month end CCDDR had 329 clients.  Medicaid eligibility was down a little. 
Caseload count is staying steady as the same numbers of clients that are transferring in are 
transferring out. 
 
Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Paul DiBello, to approve the report as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
December CARF Reports 
 
CCDDR received CARF accreditation in November.  Myrna is currently working on new 
measurements for tracking on the client survey.  The survey will be reorganized using new wording 
and adding different questions.  Board input on data to track would be greatly appreciated.  The 
question was asked if a scale was used for the survey and could the survey and annual plan be e-
mailed as well as mailed.  A scale is used and the survey is mailed out with the annual plan.  Angela 
would like to see plan and newsletter be e-mailed as well as mailed to client/guardian. 
 
Motion by Shanna Weber, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the report as presented. 
 
    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  
 
    NO:    None 
 
December Employment Report 
 
Client employment is maintaining. 
 
Motion by  Lisa Jackson, second Paul DiBello, to approve the report as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
December Agency Economic Report 
 
Huge improvement for percentage not paid versus billed.  There were 3 billing periods budgeted for 
December, but only 2 batches were billed.  January will have the 3 instead of 2. 
 
 
 
 
 



Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the report as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
November 2017 Credit Card Statement 
 
No Questions and a vote not necessary. 
 
Discussion & Conclusion of Resolution: 
  
             Resolution 2017-74: Calendar Year 2018 Board Officer Election & Appointments 
 
This is the annual election of board officers. 
 
Present board officer positions are: 
     Angela Sellers – Chair 
     Lisa Jackson    – Vice Chair 
     Brian Willey    -  Treasurer 
     Paul DiBello    -  Secretary 
 
Motion by Shanna Weber, second Suzanne Perkins, that Angela Sellers be Board Chair. 

 
    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello  
 
    NO:    None 
 
         Abstain:   Angela Sellers because she is the nominee        
 
Motion by Shanna Weber, second Suzanne Perkins, that Lisa Jackson be Board Vice Chair. 

 
    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Angela Sellers,  

           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello  
 
    NO:    None 
 
         Abstain:   Lisa Jackson because she is the nominee        
 
Motion by Shanna Weber, second Suzanne Perkins, that Brian Willey be Board Treasurer. 

 
    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  

           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  
 
    NO:    None 
 
Motion by Shanna Weber, second Suzanne Perkins, that Paul DiBello be Board Secretary. 

 



    AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Angela Sellers  

    NO:    None 
 
                                          Abstain:   Paul DiBello because he is the nominee  
 
After presentation and further discussion of Resolution 2017-74, motion by Shanna Weber, second 
Suzanne Perkins to approve the appointments and resolution as presented:       
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
            Resolution 2018-1: Calendar Year 2018 Human Resource Committee Nominations 
            And appointments 
 
Angela Sellers is ex officio member.  The Board Chair is always an ex officio member of the committee.  
Names called for appointment by the Board: 
 
Brian Willey Committee Chairman 
Lisa Jackson Committee Secretary 
 
After presentation and further discussion of Resolution 2018-1: 
 
Motion by Lisa Jackson, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the resolution as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
             
 Resolution 2018-2: Calendar Year 2018 Budget Appropriations Committee Nominations 
             And appointments 
 
Angela Sellers is ex officio member.  The Board Chair is always an ex officio member of the committee.  
Names called for appointment by the Board: 
 
Chris Bothwell     Committee Chairman 
Suzanne Perkins  Committee Secretary 
 
After presentation and further discussion or Resolution 2018-2: 
 
Motion by Lisa Jackson, second Shanna Weber, to approve the resolution as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
             Resolution 2018-3: Calendar Year 2018 Agency Governance Committee Nominations 



             And appointments 
 
Angela Sellers is ex officio member.  The Board Chair is always an ex officio member of the committee.  
Names called for appointment by the Board: 
 
Shanna Weber  Committee Chairman 
Paul DiBello    Committee Secretary 
 
After presentation and further discussion or Resolution 2018-3: 
 
Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Lisa Jackson, to approve the resolution as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
             Resolution 2018-4: Re-Allocation/Allocation of Restricted/Unrestricted Funds 
 
Explanation of unrestricted funds was provided with reasons to reallocate restricted funds identified. 
 
After presentation and further discussion or Resolution 2018-4: 
 
Motion by Shanna Weber, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the resolution as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
             Resolution 2018-5: Approval of Amended Policy #14 
 
Clarification in policy is recognized - if no appointment is made, seat remains vacant until there is an 
appointment made by the Commission. 
 
After presentation and further discussion or Resolution 2018-5: 
 
Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the resolution as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
             Resolution 2018-6: RFP 2017-2: Award for Interior Renovation of Office Area 
 
Three bids were received for the Keystone office area renovation.  Two of the bids were close, 
The cheapest bid did not send breakdown of what work consisted of and there was a worry that several change 
orders might take place.  The administrative team chose the middle price bid of $34,650 for their 
recommendation to the board. 
 



After presentation and further discussion or Resolution 2018-6: 
 
Motion by Suzanne Perkins, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the resolution as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
             Resolution 2018-7: Change in Mileage Rate 
 
Effective 7-1-18 mileage will increase from50.5 to 51.5. 
 
After presentation and further discussion or Resolution 2018-7: 
 
Motion by Lisa Jackson, second Chris Bothwell, to approve the resolution as presented 
 

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,  
           Suzanne Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
Adjournment: 
 
Motion by Chris Bothwell, second Lisa Jackson, to adjourn meeting. 
    

AYE:  Shanna Weber, Chris Bothwell, Lisa Jackson,           Suzanne 
Perkins, Paul DiBello, Angela Sellers  

 
    NO:    None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________          ______________________________________ 
Board Chairman      Secretary 



CLC Monthly Report 

















LAI Monthly Report 













Support Coordination 
Report 



J 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

SUPPORT COORDINATION REPORT  
 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

January 2018 
 

Client Caseloads 
 

• Number of Caseloads as of January 31st, 2018:  329 
• Budgeted Number of Caseloads:  320 
• Pending Number of New Intakes:  5 
• Medicaid Eligibility:  87.84% 

 
Caseload Counts 

 
Rachel Baskerville - 10 

Cynthia Brown - 41 
Lori Cornwell - 38 
Dawn Evans - 38 
Linda Gifford - 33 
Sharla Jenks - 31 

Ryan Johnson - 36 
Jennifer Lyons - 38 
Annie Meyer - 37 

Nicole Whittle - 27 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CARF Reports are 

Pending New 
Outcomes & 
Measures – 
Estimated 

Completion in July 
2018 



Employment Report 
 



Co
m

pe
tit

iv
e 

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t

Cu
rr

en
tly

 S
ee

ki
ng

 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t

DD
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

Sh
el

te
re

d 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t 

VR
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s

Re
tir

ed

N
A 

fo
r M

ed
/B

eh
 

re
as

on
s

Da
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

Vo
lu

nt
ee

rs

Agency Total 38 3 9 49 13 13 47 11 3
Percents from total of adults only 20.43% 1.61% 4.84% 26.34% 6.99% 6.99% 25.27% 5.91% 1.61%
Baskerville 4 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0
Brown 4 0 0 4 3 1 2 1 0
Lyon 3 0 1 8 2 2 7 0 0
Cornwell 5 0 1 8 2 0 6 2 0
Gifford 8 2 0 3 0 1 1 0 0
Jenks 2 0 0 4 0 1 3 6 0
Johnson 3 1 1 4 3 2 6 0 2
Evans 5 0 1 4 1 1 7 0 0
Meyer 1 0 2 11 0 3 13 1 1
Whittle 3 0 3 2 2 1 2 1 0

20% 

2% 

5% 

26% 
7% 

7% 

25% 

6% 

2% 

CCDDR Adults as of 1/31/2018 

Competitive Employment 

Currently Seeking Employment 

DD Employment Support Services 

Sheltered Employment  

VR Employment Support Services 

Retired 

NA for Med/Beh reasons 

Day Services 

Volunteers 



Agency Economic 
Report 

(Unaudited) 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENCY ECONOMIC REPORT  
 
 

Page - 1 - of 11 
 

 

January 2018 

 

 
Targeted Case Management Income 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Page - 2 - of 11 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page - 3 - of 11 
 

Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2018 - FY18 P&L  Departments 
January 2018 

 
SB 40 Tax Services 

 
Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

Income   
 

    
 

  

   4000 SB 40 Tax Income 840,863  822,027  18,836    
 

0  

   4500 Services Income   
 

0  109,911  92,310  17,601  

Total Income 840,863  822,027  18,836  109,911  92,310  17,601  

Gross Profit 840,863  822,027  18,836  109,911  92,310  17,601  

Expenses   
 

    
 

  

   5000 Payroll & Benefits   
 

0  73,027  76,110  (3,083) 

   5100 Repairs & Maintenance   
 

0  13  544  (531) 

   5500 Contracted Business Services   
 

0  4,305  6,899  (2,594) 

   5600 Presentations/Public Meetings   
 

0  85  893  (808) 

   5700 Office Expenses   
 

0  4,872  2,208  2,664  

   5800 Other General & Administrative 453  800  (347) 5,889  2,019  3,870  

   5900 Utilities   
 

0  599  1,400  (801) 

   6100 Insurance   
 

0  1,290  1,346  (56) 

   6700 Partnership for Hope 0  0  0    
 

0  

   6900 Direct Services 14,023  9,608  4,415    
 

0  

   7100 Housing Programs 9,050  13,477  (4,427)   
 

0  

   7200 CLC 7,874  13,459  (5,585)   
 

0  

   7300 Sheltered Employment Programs 19,658  21,893  (2,235)   
 

0  

   7500 Community Employment Programs 44  600  (556)   
 

0  

   7900 Special/Additional Needs 5,199  8,864  (3,665)   
 

0  

Total Expenses 56,301  68,701  (12,400) 90,081  91,419  (1,338) 

Net Operating Income 784,562  753,326  31,236  19,830  891  18,939  

Other Expenses   
 

    
 

  

   8500 Depreciation   
 

0  2,562  2,650  (88) 

Total Other Expenses 0  0  0  2,562  2,650  (88) 

Net Other Income 0  0  0  (2,562) (2,650) 88  

Net Income 784,562  753,326  31,236  17,268  (1,759) 19,027  

 
Budget Variance Report 

 
Total Income: During January of 2018, SB 40 Tax Revenues were slightly higher than projected, and Services 
Program income was higher than projected.  Services Program billing was budgeted to occur three times in 
December; however, there were only two billing cycles for that month.  The additional billing cycle occurred in 
January; therefore, Services income reflects the additional billing period.  The differences in billing period 
adjustments did not negatively impact variances on the final YTD budgeted net income versus the actual net 
income at YE 2017. 
 
Total Expenses: During January of 2018, overall SB 40 Tax program expenses were lower than budgeted 
expectations with variances in all categories.  CRC Direct Service billing was budgeted to occur three times 
December; however, there were only two billing cycles for that month.  As a result, CRC Direct Service expenses 
are higher than budgeted.  This overage was offset because all other categories were lower than budgeted. 
Overall Services Program expenses were lower than budgeted expectations.  Savings in Payroll and Contracted 
Business Services offset overages in the Office and Other G&A expenses. 
 
 



Page - 4 - of 11 
 

  
 

Balance Sheet 
As of January 31, 2018 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

ASSETS     

   Current Assets     

      Bank Accounts     

         1000 Bank Accounts     

            1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts     

               1010 SB 40 Tax Account (County Tax Funds) - First Nat'l Bank 15,287  0  

               1015 SB 40 Tax Reserve Account (County Tax Funds) - Central Bank 229    

               1020 SB 40 Tax Certificate of Deposit 0    

               1025 SB 40 Tax - Bank of Sullivan 978,073    

               1030 SB 40 Tax Reserve - Bank of Sullivan 229,400    

            Total 1005 SB 40 Tax Bank Accounts 1,222,988  0  

            1050 Services Bank Accounts     

               1055 Services Account - 1st Nat'l Bank 0  207,328  

               1060 Services Certificate of Deposit   0  

            Total 1050 Services Bank Accounts 0  207,328  

         Total 1000 Bank Accounts 1,222,988  207,328  

      Total Bank Accounts 1,222,988  207,328  

      Accounts Receivable     

         1200 Services     

            1210 Medicaid Direct Service   63,556  

            1215 Non-Medicaid Direct Service   14,023  

         Total 1200 Services 0  77,579  

         1300 Property Taxes     

            1310 Property Tax Receivable 1,052,414    

            1315 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (8,876)   

         Total 1300 Property Taxes 1,043,538  0  

         1350 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 0    

      Total Accounts Receivable 1,043,538  77,579  

      Other Current Assets     

         1389 TCM Claim Confirmations (A/R) 0    

         1399 TCM Remittance Advices (In-Transit Payments) 0  0  

         1400 Other Current Assets     

            1410 Other Deposits 0    

            1430 Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions   60,875  

            1435 Net Pension Asset (Liability)   (21,526) 

         Total 1400 Other Current Assets 0  39,349  

         1450 Prepaid Expenses   0  

            1455 Prepaid-Insurance 0  16,918  

         Total 1450 Prepaid Expenses 0  16,918  

      Total Other Current Assets 0  56,267  

   Total Current Assets 2,266,526  341,174  

   Fixed Assets     



Page - 5 - of 11 
 

      1500 Fixed Assets     

         1510 100 Third Street Land   47,400  

         1511 Keystone Land   14,000  

         1520 100 Third Street Building   431,091  

         1521 Keystone   163,498  

         1525 Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   (136,099) 

         1526 Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   (15,315) 

         1530 100 Third Street Remodeling   126,736  

         1531 Keystone Remodeling   50,169  

         1535 Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   (45,860) 

         1536 Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   (2,522) 

         1540 Equipment   64,584  

         1545 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   (32,194) 

         1550 Vehicles   6,740  

         1555 Accumulated Depreciation - Vehicles   (6,740) 

      Total 1500 Fixed Assets 0  665,487  

   Total Fixed Assets 0  665,487  

TOTAL ASSETS 2,266,526  1,006,661  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     

   Liabilities     

      Current Liabilities     

         Accounts Payable     

            1900 Accounts Payable 0  870  

         Total Accounts Payable 0  870  

         Other Current Liabilities     

            2000 Current Liabilities     

               2005 Accrued Accounts Payable 0  0  

               2006 DMH Payable 0    

               2007 Non-Medicaid Payable 14,023    

               2010 Accrued Payroll Expense 0  0  

               2015 Accrued Compensated Absences 0  0  

               2025 Prepaid Services 0    

               2030 Deposits 0  17  

               2050 Prepaid Tax Revenue 0    

               2055 Deferred Inflows - Property Taxes 913,718    

               2060 Payroll Tax Payable   0  

                  2061 Federal W / H Tax Payable 0  96  

                  2062 Social Security Tax Payable 0  (73) 

                  2063 Medicare Tax Payable 0  3  

                  2064 MO State W / H Tax Payable 0  1,768  

               Total 2060 Payroll Tax Payable 0  1,793  

               2070 Payroll Clearing     

                  2071 AFLAC Pre-tax W / H 0  378  

                  2072 AFLAC Post-tax W / H 0  (1) 

                  2073 Vision Insuance W / H 0  (97) 

                  2074 Health Insurance W / H 0  28  

                  2075 Dental Insurance W / H 0  (93) 



Page - 6 - of 11 
 

                  2076 Savings W / H   (100) 

                  2078 Misc W / H   166  

                  2079 Other W / H   100  

               Total 2070 Payroll Clearing 0  382  

            Total 2000 Current Liabilities 927,741  2,192  

         Total Other Current Liabilities 927,741  2,192  

      Total Current Liabilities 927,741  3,062  

   Total Liabilities 927,741  3,062  

   Equity     

      3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances     

         3001 Operational 0    

         3005 Operational Reserves 229,317    

         3010 Transportation 60,487    

         3015 New Programs 10,030    

         3030 Special Needs 0    

         3040 Sheltered Workshop 115,520    

         3045 Traditional Medicaid Match 0    

         3050 Partnership for Hope Match 7,733    

         3055 Building/Remodeling/Expansion 0    

         3065 Legal 0    

         3070 TCM 0    

         3075 Community Resource 0    

      Total 3000 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances 423,087  0  

      3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances     

         3501 Operational   0  

         3505 Operational Reserves   200,000  

         3510 Transportation   0  

         3515 New Programs   0  

         3530 Special Needs   0  

         3550 Partnership for Hope Match   0  

         3555 Building/Remodeling/Expansion   60,809  

         3560 Sponsorships   0  

         3565 Legal   6,783  

         3599 Other   664,862  

      Total 3500 Restricted Services Fund Balances 0  932,454  

      3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances 1,653  (9,993) 

      3950 Prior Period Adjustment 0  0  

      3999 Clearing Account 91,801  101,552  

      Net Income 784,562  17,268  

   Total Equity 1,301,103  1,041,282  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,228,844  1,044,343  
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page - 7 - of 11 
 

Statement of Cash Flows:  January 2018 

 

SB 40 
Tax Services 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

   Net Income 784,562  17,268  

   Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations:     

         1210 Services:Medicaid Direct Service   (14,800) 

         1215 Services:Non-Medicaid Direct Service   5,080  

         1455 Prepaid Expenses:Prepaid-Insurance   1,717  

         1525 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - 100 Third Street   898  

         1526 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Keystone   341  

         1535 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - 100 Third Street   528  

         1536 Fixed Assets:Acc Dep - Remodeling - Keystone   199  

         1545 Fixed Assets:Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment   (2,216) 

         1900 Accounts Payable (10,371) (6,963) 

         2007 Current Liabilities:Non-Medicaid Payable (5,080)   

         2050 Current Liabilities:Prepaid Tax Revenue (197,593)   

         2061 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Federal W / H Tax Payable   0  

         2062 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Social Security Tax Payable   0  

         2063 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:Medicare Tax Payable   0  

         2064 Current Liabilities:Payroll Tax Payable:MO State W / H Tax Payable   (1,025) 

         2071 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Pre-tax W / H   (55) 

         2072 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:AFLAC Post-tax W / H   (12) 

         2073 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Vision Insuance W / H   (16) 

         2075 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Dental Insurance W / H   (34) 

         2076 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Savings W / H   0  

         2078 Current Liabilities:Payroll Clearing:Misc W / H   (142) 

   Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Income to Net Cash provided by operations: (213,044) (16,500) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 571,518  768  

INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

   1540 Fixed Assets:Equipment   (375) 

Net cash provided by investing activities 0  (375) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

   3005 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Operational Reserves 906    

   3010 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Transportation 27,196    

   3015 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:New Programs 10,030    

   3030 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Special Needs (2,207)   

   3040 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Sheltered Workshop (36,086)   

   3045 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Traditional Medicaid Match (790)   

   3050 Restricted SB 40 Tax Fund Balances:Partnership for Hope Match 3,781    

   3555 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Building/Remodeling/Expansion   9,081  

   3565 Restricted Services Fund Balances:Legal   6,783  

   3900 Unrestricted Fund Balances (73,835) (16,481) 

Net cash provided by financing activities (71,005) (617) 

Net cash increase for period 500,514  (224) 

Cash at beginning of period 722,474  207,552  

Cash at end of period 1,222,988  207,328  
 



Page - 8 - of 11 
 

 
 

Check Detail 
January 2018 

      1025 SB 40 Tax - Bank of Sullivan 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 
01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4434 Bryan Cave LLP (990.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4435 MO HealthNet (101.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4436 Lake Area Industries (66,738.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4437 MO HealthNet (504.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4438 MO HealthNet (504.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4439 MO HealthNet (504.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4440 MO HealthNet (504.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4441 OATS, Inc. (5,447.00) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4442 Skillset LLC (1,191.97) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4443 Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (19,103.04) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4444 Childrens Learning Center (7,874.42) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4445 Lake Area Industries (14,480.95) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4446 Gene A Hilton (625.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4447 DMH Local Tax Matching Fund (4,266.59) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4448 MO HealthNet (40.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4449 MO HealthNet (101.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4450 MO HealthNet (228.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4451 MO HealthNet (246.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4452 MO HealthNet (504.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4453 MO HealthNet (682.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4454 Brookview Apartments of Camdenton (100.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4455 Camden Manors, Inc. (100.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4456 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (100.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4457 Clifford Smith (861.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4458 Darryll Euler (218.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4459 David A Schlenfort (689.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4460 Glen Donnach, LLC (250.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4461 Bridgeview Inc. (650.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4462 Jacob and/or Lana Kentner (1,269.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4463 JC Sutton LLC (404.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4464 Maryann VanCleave (652.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4465 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (306.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4466 Steve Weisenfelder (681.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4467 Twenter Properties (100.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4468 MO HealthNet (4.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4469 Camden Manors, Inc. (100.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4470 Camdenton Apartments dba Lauren's Place (226.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4471 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (375.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4472 Steve Weisenfelder (1,028.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4473 MO HealthNet (35.00) 



Page - 9 - of 11 
 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4474 Revelation Construction & Development, LLC (849.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4475 MO HealthNet (40.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4476 MO HealthNet (261.00) 

01/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4477 MO HealthNet (178.00) 

01/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4478 All Seasons Services 0.00  

01/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4479 MO HealthNet (896.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4480 Bryan Cave LLP (452.51) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4481 MO HealthNet (4.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4482 OATS, Inc. (5,229.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4483 MO HealthNet (11.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4484 MO HealthNet (40.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4485 MO HealthNet (216.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4486 MO HealthNet (278.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4487 MO HealthNet (511.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4488 MO HealthNet (642.00) 

01/29/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4489 MO HealthNet (274.00) 

01/30/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 4490 Rodeway Inn (91.98) 

           1055 Services Account - 1st Nat'l Bank 

Date Transaction Type Num Name Amount 

01/01/2018 Expense 
JAN-ACH 

FEE First National Bank (24.95) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7945 Aflac (869.66) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7946 AT&T (82.32) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7947 Bryan Cave LLP (647.50) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7948 Connie L Baker (65.81) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7949 Cynthia Brown (27.78) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7950 Janine's Flowers (120.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7951 LaClede Electric Cooperative (414.51) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7952 Lake Area Industries (50.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7953 Linda Gifford (124.39) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7954 MSW Interactive Designs LLC (30.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7955 Office Business Equipment (130.99) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7956 Rachel K Baskerville (122.77) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7957 Republic Services #435 (114.04) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7958 Ryan Johnson (74.90) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7959 Summit Natural Gas of Missouri, Inc. (325.86) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7960 Lake Regional Occupational Medicine Clinic (71.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7961 Direct Service Works (795.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7962 Refills Ink (414.94) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7963 TruClean (55.00) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7964 Camden County PWSD #2 (42.13) 

01/05/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7965 KMB Technical Group, Inc. (240.00) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7966 Linda Simms (1,281.67) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7967 Eddie L Thomas (287.32) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7968 Sharla Jenks (98.13) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7969 Ameren Missouri (446.70) 



Page - 10 - of 11 
 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7970 Lake Area Chamber of Commerce (100.00) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7971 Refills Ink (989.86) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7972 Ezard's, Inc. (78.25) 

01/11/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7973 Heather Schnebly LPN (45.00) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152144 Rachel K Baskerville (1,144.77) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152145 Myrna Blaine (1,482.16) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152146 Jeanna K Booth (1,008.00) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152147 Cynthia Brown (1,152.88) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152148 Lori Cornwell (893.73) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152149 Dawn R Evans (1,086.12) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152150 Linda Gifford (819.48) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152151 Sharla Jenks (840.19) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152152 Ryan Johnson (1,115.30) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152153 Jennifer Lyon (1,019.61) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152154 Annie Meyer (1,086.00) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152155 Sylvia M Santon (506.92) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152156 Edmond J Thomas (513.16) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152157 Eddie L Thomas (2,373.06) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152158 Marcie L. Vansyoc (1,210.97) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152159 Nicole M Whittle (1,087.56) 

01/12/2018 Expense 01/12/2018 Edward Jones (100.00) 

01/12/2018 Expense 152143 Connie L Baker (940.71) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7974 Evers & Company, CPA's, L.L.C. (3,615.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7975 All Seasons Services (75.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7976 City Of Camdenton (45.07) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7977 Missouri Dept of Revenue (2,816.00) 

01/12/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7978 Mo Division Of Employment Security (122.45) 

01/12/2018 Expense 01/12/2018 Internal Revenue Service (6,280.89) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7979 Ezard's, Inc. (1,800.00) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7980 GB Maintenance Supply (38.46) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7981 Office Business Equipment (44.42) 

01/18/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7982 TruClean (175.00) 

01/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7983 TruClean (55.00) 

01/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7984 US Department of Education - Tracking # 1017780285 (465.09) 

01/19/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7985 All Seasons Services (225.00) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152161 Connie L Baker (937.45) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152162 Rachel K Baskerville (1,117.34) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152163 Myrna Blaine (1,482.18) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152164 Jeanna K Booth (1,032.01) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152165 Cynthia Brown (1,131.07) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152166 Lori Cornwell (888.68) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152167 Dawn R Evans (1,032.65) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152168 Linda Gifford (896.80) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152169 Sharla Jenks (896.81) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152170 Ryan Johnson (1,111.35) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152171 Jennifer Lyon (1,014.19) 



Page - 11 - of 11 
 

01/26/2018 Expense 152172 Annie Meyer (1,097.68) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152173 Sylvia M Santon (506.92) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152174 Eddie L Thomas (2,349.06) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152175 Marcie L. Vansyoc (1,422.93) 

01/26/2018 Expense 152176 Nicole M Whittle (823.47) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7986 Myrna Blaine (190.19) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7987 Office Business Equipment (5,990.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7988 CNA Surety (359.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7989 Bryan Cave LLP (1,200.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7990 Cynthia Brown (61.77) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7991 Delta Dental of Missouri (441.58) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7992 E-Z Disposal (22.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7993 Lorraine  Schleigh (70.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7994 MACDDS (5,137.10) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7995 Mo Consolidated Health Care (12,150.03) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7996 Principal Life Ins (233.60) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7997 Bankcard Center (524.76) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7998 Deer Run Properties LLC (300.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 7999 TruClean (55.00) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8000 Linda Simms (1,297.18) 

01/26/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8001 Charter Business (529.87) 

01/26/2018 Expense 01/26/2018 Internal Revenue Service (5,839.60) 

01/26/2018 Expense 01/26/2018 Edward Jones (100.00) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8002 AT&T (74.52) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8003 Connie L Baker (71.87) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8004 Cynthia Brown (65.15) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8005 Lagers (3,592.58) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8006 Linda Gifford (273.46) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8007 Linda Simms (203.17) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8008 Lori Cornwell (86.51) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8009 Marcie L. Vansyoc (108.07) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8010 Rachel K Baskerville (161.66) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8011 Ryan Johnson (103.18) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8033 Eddie L Thomas (207.94) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8034 Jeanna K Booth (113.38) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8035 Dawn R Evans (275.69) 

01/31/2018 Bill Payment (Check) 8036 Jennifer Lyon (512.73) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



December 2017 
Credit Card Statement 

 





























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Resolutions 2018-8, 

2018-9, 2018-10, 
2018-11, & 2018-12 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-8  
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #31 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 
reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions and 
creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its 
Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #31, 
Procurement. 
 
2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #31 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 
2018-8 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 
PURPOSE: 
 

It is the policy of Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) to implement 
sound procurement management practices that allow for competitive solicitations and fair 
determinations when awarding business services, products, and contracts to individuals or 
companies that wish to do business with CCDDR. All procurement management practices of the 
board shall comply with applicable state and federal laws. 
 
POLICY: 
 

I. Procurement Process 
 
The Procurement Procedure shall identify the process and descriptions of the process in which the 
Procurement Policy shall be applied.  All conditions of the Procurement Policy, Procurement 
Procedure, and procurement activities shall adhere to and comply with Policy #17, Financial 
Management Practices, and shall not conflict with any other Board policy or its Bylaws. The 
Board shall reserve the right to utilize existing State or County contracts for specific products or 
services through a resolution if the Board deems it necessary.  All records of procurement 
activities shall be kept on file at CCDDR for the prescribed time allotted by law.  

 
II. Procurement Officer 

 
The Executive Director shall appoint a designated Procurement Officer for procuring products or 
services on behalf of CCDDR.  In the absence of an appointed Procurement Officer, the 
Executive Director shall serve as the Procurement Officer.  

 
III. Procurement Guidelines 

 
It is not necessary to obtain bids or proposals on the purchase of a product or service from the 
same person or business in the amount of $4,500 or less within a 90-day period. For the purchase 
of a product or service from the same person or business costing more than $4,500 and less than 
$6,000 within a 90-day period, the designated Procurement Officer should make a legitimate 
attempt to obtain three bids or proposals from three potential sources; however, if three bids or 
proposals cannot be obtained from three potential sources, the Procurement Officer shall provide 
a written explanation as to why three bids or proposals could not be obtained and must receive 
written authorization from the Executive Director before procuring the products or services.  
Faxed or emailed bids and proposals or quotes directly from a potential source’s website or 

Policy Number:  
31 

Effective:  September 17, 2012 
Revised:  August 25, 2014, February 26, 2018 

 
Subject: Procurement 

  
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

catalog may be obtained.  The Executive Director can authorize purchases base on cost, quality, 
and other factors related to the purchases. 
 
A formal competitive bid process shall be used for the purchase of a product or service $6,000 or 
higher from the same person or business within a 90-day period. A Request for Proposals (RFP) 
shall be published in a local newspaper and shall be posted on the CCDDR website.  The RFP can 
also be submitted directly to potential sources; however, direct submissions must be made to at 
least three potential sources.  Bidders shall be given the guidelines for their responses contained 
within the RFP and an appropriate amount of time in which to develop and submit a proposal or 
quote based on the requirements contained in the RFP.  The responses shall be sealed and shall 
remain sealed until the deadline for the RFP has passed.  All responding parties shall be notified 
of the date for opening the sealed responses. Sealed responses shall be opened during a regularly 
scheduled CCDDR Board meeting.  
 
The Board may waive the requirement of competitive bids where there is a single feasible source 
for the purchase, and it makes the determination in writing and enters it in the Board meeting 
minutes.  A “single feasible source” exists when: 
 

1. Supplies are proprietary and only available from the manufacturer or a single distributor. 
2. Based on past procurement experience, it is determined that only one distributor services 

the region in which the supplies are needed. 
3. Supplies are available at a discount from a single distributor for a limited period of time. 

 
When a single feasible source is to be procured, the Board shall post notice of the proposed 
purchase if between $3,000 and $4,999.  If the single feasible source purchase is $5,000 or more, 
the Board shall post notice and advertise intent of the purchase in the local newspaper.  Posted 
notices for single feasible source purchases shall include a paper notice posted on the primary 
place of business and on the CCDDR website.  Notices posted and intents advertised for single 
feasible source procurement shall be done at least 10 days prior to purchase. 
 
Supports and/or services for individuals served by CCDDR and paid by the Board through 
Medicaid Waiver agreements or other contracts with the Department of Mental Health, Division 
of Developmental Disabilities, shall be done in accordance with the guidelines established within 
those agreements or contracts.  Supports and/or services for individuals served by CCDDR 
procured and paid solely by the Board shall be done in a manner which represents the health, 
safety, and best interests of the individuals being served. 

 
IV. Awards for Services and Products 

 
A panel of CCDDR representatives will be assigned to review all responses before an approved 
respondent is selected.  CCDDR may require respondents to provide additional assurances, 
insurances, bonds, and supplementary information during the procurement process.  If there is 
only one respondent to an RFP, a second solicitation may or may not be offered.  All proposals 
may be rejected and new solicitations issued.  Awards and contracts for RFP’s shall not be solely 
based on price.  Other considerations will be utilized based on the premise of the services and/or 
products contained within the RFP.  Respondent references, respondent experience, respondent 
qualifications, proposal presentation, proposal accuracy, proposal clarity, timelines for project 
completion, quality of proposed goods/services, warranties, and other factors related to the 



Page 3 of 3 
 

product and/or service shall be considered during the procurement process.  Preference shall be 
applied to those respondents who employ Camden County residents with developmental 
disabilities and may be part of the requirements contained within the RFP.  All other preferences 
and guidelines identified in applicable Federal, state, and local law shall be recognized. 

 
V. Banking Services 

 
The Board shall issue an RFP and receive proposals from banking corporations or associations to 
be depositaries of funds every four years, with an option to rebid in odd numbered years.  
Proposals are to be sealed, include the rate of interest for the specified period in the RFP, and 
must include a certified check for not less than $2,500 as a guaranty of good faith on the part of 
the respondent to provide the required security per RSMo 110.010.  If there are no responses, the 
Board can chose any bank in the county or adjoining counties with interest of not less than 1.5%. 

 
VI. Periodic Review of Existing Products or Services 

 
CCDDR shall periodically review the cost of products and/or services utilized on an ongoing 
basis and previously awarded through the procurement process.  If desired or necessary, CCDDR 
may seek to solicit new proposals for these products and/or services.  In such cases, CCDDR 
shall follow the Procurement Guidelines in Section III.      

 
VII. Emergency Procurement 

 
CCDDR may waive all procurement requirements when there has been an “Emergency 
Declaration” issued by the Executive Director in conjunction with the approval of the Board 
Chairman.  If the Board Chairman is unavailable, the Executive Director shall seek the approval 
from the Board Vice Chairman.  If the Chairman and Vice Chairman are unavailable, the 
Executive Director shall seek approval from no less than two Board members.  If the Executive 
Director is not available, any two members of the board in conjunction with the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman (if the Chairman is unavailable) can issue an “Emergency Declaration”.  An 
“Emergency Declaration” can be issued if it has been determined that there exists a threat to life, 
property, public health, or public safety; when immediate expenditure is necessary in order to 
protect against loss of or damage to CCDDR property; if a legal matter prompts immediate 
attention or response; in order to prevent or minimize serious disruption in CCDDR services; or 
to ensure the integrity of CCDDR records. Emergency procurements shall be made with as much 
competition as is practicable under the circumstances. A detailed report and accounting of the 
“Emergency Declaration” shall be provided to the Board for review at the next regularly 
scheduled Board meeting or at a convened emergency Board meeting (if necessary). 

 
 

REFERENCES: 
 
• Chapter 50, Revised MO Statutes 
• Chapter 34, Revised MO Statutes 
• Chapter 110, Revised MO Statutes 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-9 
 
 

 

APPROVAL OF AMENDED POLICY #17 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources) 
reviews, amends, and appeals its existing Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions and 
creates new Bylaws, policies, plans, manuals, and job descriptions as needed to remain effective in its 
Agency administration and remain compliant with regulatory statutes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the need to amend Policy #17, 
Financial Management Practices. 
 
2.  That the Board hereby amends and adopts Policy #17 (Attachment “A” hereto) as presented. 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 
2018-9 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 
 
 
PURPOSE: 
 
Camden County Developmental Disability Resources (CCDDR) shall have a policy to 
implement sound financial management practices that allow for accountability and reduce 
the threat of fraud or theft with regard to board assets. All financial management practices 
of the board shall comply with applicable state and federal laws. 
 
POLICY: 
 

I. Separation of Functions 
 

CCDDR shall strive to achieve proper separation of all financial transactions and 
bookkeeping so as to minimize the possibility of theft or fraud with regard to CCDDR 
assets and funds.  The Financial Management Procedures shall identify the separation of 
functions and all financial processes.  No single employee or Board member shall have 
sole control of processing and approving any financial transaction. 

 
II. Approval & Execution of Expenditures 

 
No expenditure shall be processed if the expenditure will cause the overall 
annual expenses to exceed the total amount of overall annual expenses 
authorized in the Board approved annual budget without Board approval 
through a resolution unless an emergency as defined in the Procurement Policy 
has been declared or if total income less total expenses does not reflect a 
negative net income.  No expenditure shall be authorized if there is a potential 
conflict of interest without first being reviewed and approved by the Board 
through a resolution.  All Board members shall have access to CCDDR 
financial records and may request documentation on any financial transaction at 
any time.  The Board shall receive a monthly summary of all checks written the 
previous month on all CCDDR banking accounts, and shall approve these 
payments/expenditures as part of the monthly financial statements. 

 
 
 

Policy Number: 
17 

Effective:  May 1, 2008 
Revised: April 20, 2009, April 19, 2010, 
September 17, 2012, October 16, 2017, 

February 26, 2018 
Subject: Financial Management 

Practices 



Page 2 of 4 
 

III. Signing of Checks 
 

All checks, drafts, and other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of 
CCDDR must have the signature of two officers of CCDDR, or one officer 
and the Executive Director. Persons signing checks shall also be provided 
copies of invoices that checks are being prepared for as a means of verifying 
the accuracy and validity of payments. All officers authorized to sign checks 
as well as the Executive Director shall be covered by a blanket fidelity bond, 
surety bond, or other similar insurance policy as described in Article IX of the 
Bylaws. 

 
IV. Financial Accounting 

 
CCDDR will conduct its financial accounting under the premise of the Proprietary 
Fund Accounting System, Enterprise Fund accounting principles (accrual basis).  This 
is needed to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises, where the intent of the Board is to show that costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general 
public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges 
and that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net 
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes.  The accounting and recording of financial 
transactions shall be done internally and the processes will be identified in the 
Financial Management Procedures. CCDDR may utilize the services of a CPA to 
supplement its accounting systems, recording, or reporting in whole or in part if the 
need arises and is justified. 

 
 

V. Fixed Assets 
 
CCDDR shall maintain a list of all fixed assets with a usable life of over 1 year and an 
original purchase price of $1,000 or more. This list shall document the item, date of 
purchase, amount of purchase, model number (if applicable), serial number (if 
applicable), physical location, and date/method of disposition (if applicable).  Any 
items determined to be fixed assets under prior criteria shall remain as such for their 
useful life. All CCDDR property shall be tagged with property control stickers, if 
practical. Prior to disposing of any fixed asset of the board, the Executive Director 
must first declare the asset as inoperable/unusable or surplus property. For surplus 
property, sealed bids shall then be solicited by the Board for sale of the item. For assets 
whose original purchase price was $6,000 or more, the CCDDR Board of Directors 
must approve of the disposal or sale of the fixed asset. The fixed asset list shall be 
updated annually. 

 
VI. Board Investments 

 
CCDDR may maintain fund balances carried over from prior years or excess funds 
during the current year.  The Board may invest these funds at its discretion into 
investment accounts.  All Board-controlled investments shall comply with Policy 



Page 3 of 4 
 

#27, Investment of Board Funds. 
 

VII. Unaudited Financial Statements 
 

Unaudited Financial statements shall be completed monthly for the Board’s review and 
approval.  Financial statements are to include an income statement for the previous 
month ended, an income statement for year-to-date as of the last day of the previous 
month, a balance sheet as of the last day of the previous month, a cash flow statement 
as of the last day of the previous month, and a cash flow statement for year-to-date as of 
the last of day of the previous month. The format of the income statements shall show 
budgeted vs. actual revenues and expenditures for the previous month ended and the 
year-to-date fiscal year.  Each of these reports shall reflect a separation of the Tax Levy 
funds and transactions (Grants), the Targeted Case Management funds and transactions 
(TCM), and any other program funds and transactions. The income statements shall also 
reflect the variances, and the Executive Director shall submit a synopsis of the 
variances. Copies of the aforementioned reports shall be posted on CCDDR’s Web site 
for public viewing. 

 
 

VIII. Sharing of Financial Data with Stakeholders 
 

Year-end financial data shall also be shared with CCDDR stakeholders by 
incorporating this data within CCDDR’s Annual Report, which shall be posted on 
CCDDR’s Web site for viewing by the public and any other interested parties. 

 
IX. Annual Audit 

 
CCDDR shall obtain an independent audit of all agency finances from a Certified 
Public Accountant annually. The audit shall include reports on CCDDR’s compliance 
with internal controls related to financial statements and applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants in accordance with Governmental Auditing 
Standards, as well as compliance with Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Nonprofit Organizations.” The annual audit shall contain a 
Management Letter in which findings and recommendations are provided. 

 
X. Pledged Securities 

 
CCDDR shall obtain pledged securities from financial institutions in which the 
account balance is or may exceed $250,000. 

 
 

XI. Petty Cash 
 

CCDDR may maintain a petty cash fund to meet immediate and relatively minor 
purchases of the agency. An amount of no more than $25.00 may be maintained in 
the petty cash fund. A ledger shall document all purchases from petty cash, and 
signed receipts shall be stapled to the petty cash ledger. The petty cash fund shall be 
reconciled monthly. 



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

XII. Business Credit Accounts 
 

CCDDR shall maintain credit accounts at selected places of business for office 
supplies and other routine supplies required by the board for its operations. All such 
applications for business credit shall be prior-approved by the Executive Director and 
account balances shall be paid in full to the business each month by CCDDR. 
CCDDR shall not obtain business credit accounts at businesses in where finance 
charges are made for balances less than one month old. 

 
XIII. Review of Service Billing 

 
On a monthly basis, the Executive Director or designated supervisor shall review all 
Targeted Case Management billings to determine their accuracy, determine why 
unpaid claims were not paid, and implement/follow up with corrective actions as 
needed. 

 
XIV. Cost Analysis of Services Provided 

 
On a monthly basis, the Executive Director shall prepare a report for the CCDDR 
Board of Directors showing total program costs, including both direct costs and 
indirect (overhead) costs, revenues received, and the net gain or loss for that month. 
An annual report based on year end data shall be provided to the CCDDR Board of 
Directors in January for the prior year. The annual reports shall contain comments by 
the Executive Director and may contain suggestions to improve efficiencies to the 
programs as a means of ensuring continued financial viability. 
 

REFERENCES: 
 
• CARF Standards Manual 
• Chapter 70, Revised MO Statutes 
• Chapter 67, Revised MO Statutes 



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-10  
 
 

 

OATS FACILITY USE AGREEMENT AND ADDENDUM 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby wishes to lease the commercial building space owned by 
the Board and located at 255 Keystone Industrial Park, Camdenton MO 65020. 
 
2.  The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Facility Use Agreement and Addendum with 
OATS, Inc. (see Attachment “A” hereto). 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 
2018-10 

 
 
 
 
 



 
FACILITY USE AGREEMENT  

 
This Facility Use Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made effective this _____day of 
______________________, 2018, by and between the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
(“Lessor”) and OATS, Inc. (“Tenant”). The parties agree as follows: 
 
RECITALS: 

• Whereas, Lessor is authorized by state statute (Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo) to 
provide for the needs of persons with developmental disabilities in Camden County MO 
 
• Whereas Lessor owns property located at 255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive in 
Camdenton MO and desires to provide office/facility space to Tenant, a Missouri 
nonprofit corporation, for the purpose of accomplishing its nonprofit, public mission 
 
• Whereas Tenant provides transportation services to individuals with developmental 
disabilities (as defined by state statute 630.005 RSMo) and the general public 
 
• Whereas the premises located at 255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive is conducive to, 
and available for, the operations of the Tenant in accomplishing its public mission as a 
nonprofit entity and Tenant desires to use the premises at 255 Keystone Industrial Park 
Drive in Camdenton MO for its on-going operations subject to the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement and all applicable laws and regulations 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and conditions 
contained herein, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 
PREMISES. Lessor does hereby lease to Tenant in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement the office and facility space identified as Section “A” (see Attachment “A” 
hereto) located at 255 Keystone Industrial Park Drive in Camdenton, Missouri.   
 
RENT. Tenant will pay Lessor an amount of $400 per month due no later than the 15th of each 
month.  
 
PARKING. Tenant shall be entitled to use designated parking spaces for motor vehicles for the 
Tenant’s own needs and for the needs of those to whom they provide services.  
 
FURNISHINGS. Tenant shall provide their own office furnishings and equipment needs. 
 
ALTERATIONS. Lessor shall have sole and absolute discretion over alterations to the building 
systems and building structure. Approval of all other interior alterations shall be prior-approved 
on a case by case basis by the Lessor.  
 
TERM. The term of this Agreement will begin on the 1st day of March, 2018, and terminate on 
the 31st day of December, 2018. Lessor and Tenant may extend this Agreement on a month-to-



month basis if the term expires without a new Agreement in place, subject to Lessor approval.  
Month-to-month terms shall be based upon the same covenants, conditions, and provisions 
provided in this Lease. 
 
TENANTS RESTRICTED TRANSFER RIGHTS.  Tenant shall have no right to sublease the 
premises, pledge Tenant’s leasehold interest as collateral for a loan, assign or sell this Agreement 
or transfer Tenant’s interest in this Agreement to a third party. Any attempted transfer of any 
interest of the Tenant without Lessor’s consent shall be of no force and affect. 
 
POSSESSION. Tenant shall be entitled to possession on the first day of the term of this 
Agreement, and shall yield possession to Lessor on the last day of the term of this Agreement, 
unless otherwise agreed to by both parties. 
 
USE OF PREMISES. Tenant shall use the premises for community inclusive transportation 
services.  These services shall extend to individuals with developmental disabilities and the 
general public. Tenant shall have shared use of Section “B” (aka “main common area”) in 
conjunction with employee or public training, educational events, and other business related 
functions.  In no event shall the premises be used by Tenant for any other purpose other than the 
above without the prior written consent of the Lessor.  
 
UTILITIES AND SERVICES. Lessor shall be responsible for payment of all electric, gas, 
water, sewer, and trash services in connection with the premises located at 255 Keystone 
Industrial Park Drive. Tenant shall reimburse Lessor for electric and gas services only. Lessor 
shall invoice Tenant monthly for electric and gas services, and Tenant shall pay these invoices 
within 30 days of issuance. Tenant shall pay separately for their respective share of office 
cleaning, phone, and internet services. Lessor shall pay the full cost of lawn care services.  
 
PROPERTY INSURANCE. Lessor and Tenant shall each be responsible to maintain 
appropriate Personal Property insurance for their respective interests/assets within the premises 
and property located on the premises. Real property (building) insurance shall be maintained by 
Lessor. 
 
LIABILITY INSURANCE. Tenant agrees to carry and to pay the premiums for insurance of the 
following types and for no less than the following limits, and otherwise agrees to the following 
terms and conditions: 
 
General Liability Policy coverages in amounts not less than the following: 
$1,000,000 General Aggregate, Commercial General Liability 
$1,000,000 Personal Injury 
$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
Lessor shall be named as an additional insured or a loss payee, as the case may be, within 
Tenant's General Liability insurance policy listed above. Tenant shall furnish to Lessor 
Certificate of Insurance documenting the existence of the insurance coverages and limits required 
above within 15 days of the signing of this Agreement. Failure to provide proof of insurance 



shall give Lessor the absolute right to cancel this Agreement without cost or penalty to Lessor. 
Such policies shall, with respect to liability insurance coverage, name Lessor and/or its designee 
as an additional insured and shall contain a provision by which the insurer agrees that such policy 
cannot be canceled, materially changed or not renewed without at least thirty (30) days advance 
notice to Lessor be certified mail, return receipt requested to Lessor at the address set forth 
within this Agreement, for the Lessor. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION. Tenant hereby indemnifies and holds Lessor, its employees, board 
members, and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, liabilities, costs, 
fines, penalties and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees resulting from any claims or 
allegations of any person or entity which arise out of or in connection with Tenant's negligent 
acts or omissions. 
 
RIGHT OF ENTRY. Lessor shall have Right of Entry to premises on an as-needed basis. Lessor 
shall make every effort to inform Tenant of when such entry is desired. 
 
DEFAULTS. Tenant shall be in default of the Agreement if Tenant fails to fulfill any term of 
this Agreement or other term by which Tenant is bound. Upon being provided notice of such 
default by Lessor, Tenant shall have 10 days to cure the obligation. If obligation is not cured by 
Tenant within 10 days of notice, Lessor may take possession of the premises without further 
notice (to the extent permitted by law), and without prejudicing Lessor’s rights to damages. In the 
alternative, Lessor may elect to cure any default and the cost of such action shall be added to 
Tenant’s obligations under this Agreement. Tenant shall pay all costs, damages, and expenses 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) suffered by Lessor by reason of Tenant’s defaults.  
 
TERMINATION. The terms of this Agreement shall be null and void in the event of: 1) 
casualty/condemnation of premises, 2) Untenability of the premises as a result of events other 
than casualty/condemnation, 3) Lessor’s or Tenant's breach of its obligation under the lease, or 4) 
Tenant relocating to another facility for its transportation services program. In the event of 
Tenant relocating to another facility, a minimum of 30 days prior notice from Tenant to Lessor 
shall be provided. Tenant agrees to leave premises in good order and repair. 
 
NOTICE. Notices under this Agreement shall not be deemed valid unless given or served in 
writing and forwarded by mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
 
Lessor: Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
             100 Third St. (Physical)   

 P.O. Box 722 (Mailing) 
             Camdenton MO 65020 
 
Tenant: OATS, Inc. 
              2501 Maguire Blvd. (Physical & Mailing) 
              Columbia MO 65201 
 



Such addresses may be changed from time to time by either party by providing notice as set forth 
above. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of 
the parties. This Agreement may be modified or amended in writing if the writing is signed by 
the parties obligated under the amendment. 
 
SEVERABILITY. Should anyone or more of the sections of this Agreement be found to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the 
remaining sections contained herein shall not in any way be affected nor impaired hereby. In 
addition, if any section hereof is found to be partially enforceable, then it shall be enforced to that 
extent.  
 
WAIVER. The failure of either party to enforce any provisions of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as a waiver or limitation of that party’s right to subsequently enforce and compel strict 
compliance with every provision of this Agreement. 
 
CUMULATIVE RIGHTS. The rights of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative, and 
shall not be construed as exclusive unless otherwise required by law. 
 
GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Missouri. 
 
 
 
LESSOR: 
Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
 
By: __________________________________________________ 
      (Authorized Signature) 
 
_________________________________________     _______________________________       
(Printed Name)                                                               (Title) 
 
 
TENANT: 
OATS, Inc. 
 
 
By: ___________________________________________________ 
      (Authorized Signature) 
 
 
_________________________________________     _______________________________ 
(Printed Name)                                                               (Title)  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Facility Use 
Agreement 

Attachment “A” 





 
ADDENDUM TO FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 

 
This Addendum to the Facility Use Agreement (this “Agreement”) for 255 Keystone Industrial 
Park Drive, Section “A”, is made effective this ______day of _____________________, 2018, 
by and between the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (“Lessor”) and OATS, Inc. (“Tenant”).   
 
RECITALS: 
 
Whereas the Lessor has agreed to waive the $400.00 monthly rental charge agreed upon and 
executed by the Tenant and Lessor in the Facility Use Agreement so long as the Tenant and 
Lessor continue their partnership in community inclusive transportation programs for Camden 
County citizens with developmental disabilities.  Should the partnership between the Tenant and 
Lessor dissolve/terminate, the monthly charge will be payable the first calendar day of the 
following month after the partnership dissolution/termination.    
 
 
 
 
LESSOR: 
Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
 
 
By: __________________________________________________ 
      (Authorized Signature) 
 
_________________________________________     _______________________________       
(Printed Name)                                                               (Title) 
 
 
 
 
TENANT: 
OATS, Inc.  
 
 
By: ___________________________________________________ 
      (Authorized Signature) 
 
 
_________________________________________     _______________________________ 
(Printed Name)                                                               (Title) 
 
  



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-11  
 
 

 

CLC FACILITY USE AGREEMENT AND ADDENDUM 
 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 
Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 
control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 
County Developmental Disability Resources). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability 
Resources), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby wishes to lease the commercial building space owned by 
the Board and located at 88 Third Street, Camdenton MO 65020. 
 
2.  The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute a Facility Use Agreement and Addendum with 
Childrens Learning Center, aka “CLC” (see Attachment “A” hereto). 
 
3.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 
majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 
otherwise amended or changed. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Chairman                                                                              Date 
 
 
_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 
Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



Attachment “A” to Resolution 
2018-11 

 
 
 
 
 



 
FACILITY USE AGREEMENT  

 
This Facility Use Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made effective this _____ day of 
_________________ 20__ by and between the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board (“Lessor”) 
and the Children's Learning Center (“Tenant”). The parties agree as follows: 
 
RECITALS: 

• Whereas, Lessor is authorized by state statute (Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo) to 
provide for the needs of persons with developmental disabilities in Camden County MO 
 
• Whereas Lessor owns property located at 88 and 100 Third St. in Camdenton MO and 
desires to provide office/facility space to Tenant, a Missouri nonprofit corporation, for the 
purpose of accomplishing its nonprofit, public mission of providing for the needs of 
Camden County citizens with developmental disabilities and/or developmental delays 
 
• Whereas Tenant is organized to provide services to infants and toddlers with 
developmental delays as defined by the Missouri First Steps program and/or youth with 
developmental disabilities as defined by state statute (630.005 RSMo)  
 
• Whereas the Premises located at 88 Third St. is conducive to, and available for, the                               
operations of the Tenant in accomplishing its public mission as a nonprofit entity and 
Tenant desires to use the Premises at 88 Third St. in Camdenton MO for its on-going 
operations subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all applicable laws 
and regulations 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and conditions 
contained herein, the parties mutually agree as follows: 
 
PREMISES. Lessor does hereby lease to Tenant in accordance with the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement the office and facility space located at 88 Third Street in Camdenton, Missouri. 
 
RENT. Tenant will pay Lessor an amount of $1,500 per month due no later than the 15th of each 
month.  
 
PARKING. Tenant shall be entitled to use designated parking spaces for motor vehicles for the 
Tenant’s own needs and for the needs of those to whom they provide services.  
 
FURNISHINGS. Tenant shall provide their own office furnishings and equipment needs. 
 
ALTERATIONS. Lessor shall have sole and absolute discretion over alterations to the building 
systems and building structure. Approval of all other interior alterations shall be prior-approved 
on a case by case basis by the Lessor. Tenant shall be responsible for alterations and 
improvements made to the playground area at 88 Third St. in Camdenton MO, but can request 
funds from Lessor to assist in this. 



 
TERM. The term of this Agreement will begin on the 1st day of March 2018 and terminate on 
the 31st day of December 2018, unless earlier as provided herein. Lessor and Tenant may extend 
this Agreement on a month-to-month basis if the term expires without a new Agreement in place, 
subject to Lessor approval.  Month-to-month terms shall be based upon the same covenants, 
conditions, and provisions provided in this Lease. 
 
TENANTS RESTRICTED TRANSFER RIGHTS.  Tenant shall have no right to sublease the 
Premises, pledge Tenant’s leasehold interest as collateral for a loan, assign or sell this Agreement 
or transfer Tenant’s interest in this Agreement to a third party by gift, bequest or devise, without 
Lessor’s prior written consent to such a transfer. Any attempted transfer of any interest of the 
Tenant without Lessor’s consent shall be of no force and affect. 
 
POSSESSION. Tenant shall be entitled to possession on the first day of the term of this 
Agreement, and shall yield possession to Lessor on the last day of the term of this Agreement, 
unless otherwise agreed to by both parties. 
 
USE OF PREMISES. Services shall be rendered, but not limited to, infants and toddlers with 
developmental disabilities and/or developmental delays. These services shall extend to children 
up to 5 years of age and/or an age as the Dept. of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) 
approves and shall include diagnosis DESE designates Tenant to serve. Tenant may also provide 
therapy services to youth with developmental disabilities over the age of 5 years old on a private 
pay or third-party pay basis; documentation of developmental disability may be requested by 
Lessor for such individuals. Children without a developmental delay or a developmental 
disability shall be included in programming on the premises where their participation would be 
of therapeutic benefit to those children having a developmental delay or developmental 
disability. Services for children with developmental disability and/or developmental delay may 
be provided by, and paid to, Tenant as well as Independent Contractors of Tenant. Camden Co. 
children receive first priority in the receipt of services, but Tenant or Independent Contractors of 
Tenant may serve residents with above description of eligibility from other Lake area counties, 
provided those recipients of services have funding for said services. In no event shall the 
premises be used by Tenant for any other purpose other than the above without the prior written 
consent of the Lessor.  
 
UTILITIES AND SERVICES. Lessor shall be responsible for payment of all electric utilities in 
connection with the Premises located at 100 Third St. and Tenant shall pay for all electric 
services located at 88 Third St. Lessor and Tenant shall pay separately for their respective share 
of office cleaning services. Lessor and Tenant shall pay separately for their respective phone 
services. Tenant shall pay for a dumpster for both Tenant and Lessor; Lessor shall reimburse 
Tenant for the cost of the dumpster. Lessor shall pay the full cost of snow removal and lawn care 
services.  
 
PROPERTY INSURANCE. Lessor and Tenant shall each be responsible to maintain 
appropriate Personal Property insurance for their respective interests/assets within the Premises 
and property located on the Premises. Real property (building) insurance for the facility at 88 and 



100 Third St. shall be maintained by Lessor. 
 
LIABILITY INSURANCE. Tenant agrees to carry and to pay the premiums for insurance of the 
following types and for no less than the following limits, and otherwise agrees to the following 
terms and conditions: 
 
General Liability Policy coverages in amounts not less than the following: 
$1,000,000 General Aggregate, Commercial General Liability 
$1,000,000 Personal Injury 
$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
Lessor shall be named as an additional insured or a loss payee, as the case may be, within 
Tenant's General Liability insurance policy listed above. Tenant shall furnish to Lessor 
Certificate of Insurance documenting the existence of the insurance coverages and limits required 
above within 15 days of the signing of this Agreement. Failure to provide proof of insurance 
shall give Lessor the absolute right to cancel this Agreement without cost or penalty to Lessor. 
Such policies shall, with respect to liability insurance coverage, name Lessor and/or its designee 
as an additional insured and shall contain a provision by which the insurer agrees that such policy 
cannot be canceled, materially changed or not renewed without at least thirty (30) days advance 
notice to Lessor be certified mail, return receipt requested to Lessor at the address set forth 
within this Agreement, for the Lessor. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION. Tenant hereby indemnifies and holds Lessor, its employees, board 
members, and assigns harmless from and against any and all claims, damages, liabilities, costs, 
fines, penalties and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees resulting from any claims or 
allegations of any person or entity which arise out of or in connection with Tenant's negligent 
acts or omissions. 
 
RIGHT OF ENTRY. Lessor shall have Right of Entry to premises at 88 Third St on an as-
needed basis. Lessor shall make every effort to inform Tenant of when such entry is desired. 
 
DEFAULTS. Tenant shall be in default of the Agreement if Tenant fails to fulfill any term of 
this Agreement or other term by which Tenant is bound. Upon being provided notice of such 
default by Lessor, Tenant shall have 10 days to cue the obligation. If obligation is not cured by 
Tenant within 10 days of notice, Lessor may take possession of the premises without further 
notice (to the extent permitted by law), and without prejudicing Lessor’s rights to damages. In the 
alternative, Lessor may elect to cure any default and the cost of such action shall be added to 
Tenant’s obligations under this Agreement. Tenant shall pay all costs, damages, and expenses 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) suffered by Lessor by reason of Tenant’s defaults.  
 
TERMINATION. The terms of this Agreement shall be null and void in the event of: 1) 
casualty/condemnation of Premises, 2) Untenability of the Premises as a result of events other 
than casualty/condemnation, 3) Lessor’s or Tenant's breach of its obligation under the lease, or 4) 
Tenant relocating to another facility for its early intervention program. In the event of Tenant 
relocating to another facility, a minimum of 30 days prior notice from Tenant to Lessor shall be 



provided. Tenant agrees to leave premises in good order and repair. 
 
NOTICE. Notices under this Agreement shall not be deemed valid unless given or served in 
writing and forwarded by mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
 
Lessor: Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
             100 Third St.  P.O. Box 722 
             Camdenton MO 65020 
 
Tenant: Children's Learning Center 
              88 Third St.  P.O. Box 1646 
              Camdenton MO 65020 
 
Such addresses may be changed from time to time by either party by providing notice as set forth 
above. 
 
ENTIRE AGREEMENT/AMENDMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of 
the parties and there are no other promises or conditions in any other agreement whether oral or 
written. This Agreement may be modified or amended in writing, if the writing is signed by the 
party obligated under the amendment. 
 
SEVERABILITY. Should anyone or more of the sections of this Agreement be found to be 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the 
remaining sections contained herein shall not in any way be affected nor impaired hereby. In 
addition, if any section hereof is found to be partially enforceable, then it shall be enforced to that 
extent.  
 
WAIVER. The failure of either party to enforce any provisions of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as a waiver or limitation of that party’s right to subsequently enforce and compel strict 
compliance with every provision of this Agreement. 
 
CUMULATIVE RIGHTS. The rights of the parties under this Agreement are cumulative, and 
shall not be construed as exclusive unless otherwise required by law. 
 
GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Missouri. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
LESSOR: 
Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________________________ 
      (Authorized Signature) 
 
_________________________________________     _______________________________       
(Printed Name)                                                               (Title) 
 
 
 
 
TENANT: 
Children's Learning Center 
 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________________________________ 
      (Authorized Signature) 
 
 
_________________________________________     _______________________________ 
(Printed Name)                                                               (Title) 
 
  



 
ADDENDUM TO FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 

 
This Addendum to the Facility Use Agreement (this “Agreement”) for 88 Third Street is made 
effective this ______day of _____________________, 2018, by and between the Camden 
County Senate Bill 40 Board (“Lessor”) and the Children's Learning Center (“Tenant”).   
 
RECITALS: 
 
Whereas the Lessor has agreed to waive the $1,500 monthly rental charge agreed upon and 
executed by the Tenant and Lessor in the Facility Use Agreement so long as the Tenant and 
Lessor continue their partnership to facilitate services for, but not limited to, infants and toddlers 
with developmental disabilities and/or developmental delays. Should the partnership between the 
Tenant and Lessor dissolve/terminate, the monthly charge will be payable the first calendar day 
of the following month after the partnership dissolution/termination. 
 
 
 
 
 
LESSOR: 
Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board 
 
 
By: __________________________________________________ 
      (Authorized Signature) 
 
_________________________________________     _______________________________       
(Printed Name)                                                               (Title) 
 
 
 
 
TENANT: 
Children's Learning Center 
 
 
By: ___________________________________________________ 
      (Authorized Signature) 
 
 
_________________________________________     _______________________________ 
(Printed Name)                                                               (Title) 
 
  



 
CAMDEN COUNTY SB40 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-12  
 
 

 

LRA AGREEMENT WITH CRESCENT ASSOCIATES, LP 

 
WHEREAS, Sections 205.968-205.972 RSMo and subsequent passage by Camden Co. voters of the Senate 

Bill 40 enabling legislation in August of 1980 allows for the business, property, affairs, administrative 

control, and management to rest solely with the Camden County SB40 Board of Directors (dba Camden 

County Developmental Disability Resources). 

 

WHEREAS, the Camden County SB 40 Board (dba Camden County Developmental Disability Resources), 

through its Housing Voucher Program and other community partnerships, desires to establish working 

relationships with landlords, management companies, builders, and developers in an effort to provide safe, 

sanitary, decent, accessible, and affordable housing opportunities for its clients. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

1.  That the Camden County Senate Bill 40 Board, dba Camden County Developmental Disability 

Resources (CCDDR), hereafter referred to as the “Board”, hereby acknowledges the request from Crescent 

Associates, LP, for CCDDR to potentially be considered the Lead Referral Agency (LRA) and potentially 

enter into a LRA Agreement with Crescent Associates, LP, for a proposed affordable housing project yet to 

be constructed.  

 

2.  That the Board recognizes there is a need for additional safe, sanitary, decent, accessible, and affordable 

housing opportunities for its clients; that Crescent Associates, LP, intends on submitting an application for 

housing tax credits with the Missouri Housing Development Commission (MHDC), which is to be applied 

to a 40-unit, senior (55 years of age and older) multifamily housing development in Osage Beach; and that 

the project application will require a set aside of 10% of the total units (4) to be accessible housing units. 

 

3.  That the Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to sign and execute an LRA Agreement (see 

“Sample Agreement” attached hereto), with advice and consent from the Board’s legal counsel, in the event 

Crescent Associates, LP, wishes to negotiate and enter into an Agreement; and/or authorizes the Executive 

Director to provide other assistance, supporting letters, or documentation as reasonably needed to support 

Crescent Associates, LP, and its project application to MHDC. 

 

4.  A quorum has been established for vote on this resolution, this resolution has been approved by a 

majority Board vote as defined in the Board bylaws, and this resolution shall remain in effect until 

otherwise amended or changed. 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Chairman                                                                              Date 

 

 

_________________________________________                    ___________________________ 

Secretary, Vice Chairman, or Treasurer                             Date 



 

 

 

 

 

Sample 

Agreement 



 

 

REFERRAL and SUPPORT AGREEMENT 

 

In connection with Crescent Associates, LP’s (the “Development Owner”) application for an allocation 

of low-income housing tax credits, the Development Owner, Camden County Development Disability Resources 

(the “Lead Referral Agency”) and Sansone Group (the “Property Management Company” and, collectively with 

the Development Owner and the Lead Referral Agency, the “Parties”) hereby agree upon the conditions if the 

Applicant receives an allocation of low-income housing tax credits (“LIHTCs”) from Missouri Housing 

Development Commission (“MHDC”), and The Crescent at Osage Beach (the “Development”) is constructed, as 

follows: 

 

The Lead Referral Agency will: 

1. Designate a point of contact to receive notices from the property management company when an 

identified unit is available. 

2. Maintain a level of communication with other service providers and property management to 

ensure that tenancy issues are handled, and supportive services are available to tenants. 

3. Maintain and regularly update a list of eligible households interested in applying for identified 

units. 

4. Help arrange tenant-based rental assistance for eligible Set-aside Preference households who do 

not already have assistance through their case management services.   

5. Upon notification a reserved unit is available, select the household at the top of the list waiting 

for that unit type and communicate to their service provider an identified unit is available.  

6. Submit a standard letter of referral to property management, which will then process the referred 

household’s application for tenancy using the same screening criteria applied to all other 

residents of the development. 

7. Comply with all applicable fair housing laws. 

8. The obligations of the Lead Referral Agency under this agreement (the “Agreement”) are 

expressly limited to the four (4) units specifically designated for the Special Needs preference. 

The eligible tenants of such units referred by the Lead Referral Agency shall have a 

developmental disability as defined in RSMo 205.968 and shall be 55 years of age or older.   

9. The Lead Referral Agency shall be under no obligation to provide services to the Parties or to 

the Development which are not expressly authorized by Sections 205.968 – 205.972 of the 

Revised Statutes of Missouri (see Appendix “A” hereto). 

10. Where the Lead Referral Agency is, at its sole discretion, unable to provide referral or 

supportive services to the Parties or to the Development, the Lead Referral Agency may direct 

the Parties to other referral sources or service providers with experience in the provision of 

referral or supportive services to low-income housing developments. 

 

 

The Development Owner will: 

1. Agree that any Set-aside Preference housing commitment will be established, implemented, and 

kept in compliance with the Fair Housing Act, as amended, the Architectural Barriers Act of 

1968, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and any other local, state, and federal 

nondiscrimination or accessibility laws, regulations, or requirements. 

2. Agree that the identified units will not be segregated within the property and that the identified 

unit mix will depend on the needs of referred households. 

3. Agree to provide reasonable accommodation for Set-aside preference households in the tenant 

application. 

4. Assure that the identified units remain available to eligible Set-aside Preference households 

through the referral process for the entirety of the compliance period.    

5. Comply with all applicable fair housing laws. 

 

 The Property Management Company will: 



 

 

1. Notify the Lead Referral Agency of available identified units within a timely manner.  At initial 

lease-up, this notification must occur the earlier of ninety 90 days prior to certificate of occupancy or 

when marketing begins. During ongoing operations, the manager will notify the Lead Referral 

Agency upon receipt of notice of intent to vacate an identified unit.  

2. Work with the Lead Referral Agency to coordinate the first contact with the Set-aside Preference 

household and their services provider to initiate the application process. 

3. Collaborate with the referred household’s services provider, as appropriate and applicable, to address 

the household’s needs for assistance at application, accessibility accommodations, or assistance 

during tenancy. 

4. Use the Lead Referral Agency as their main point of contact to ensure community supports are made 

available to tenants in the identified units, however, tenancy will not be contingent on participation 

in services.  

5. Notify the Lead Referral Agency in a timely manner of issues or concerns that may adversely affect 

the tenancy of the household. 

6. Agree that any Set-aside Preference housing commitment will be established, implemented, and 

kept in compliance with the Fair Housing Act, as amended, the Architectural Barriers Act of 

1968, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and any other local, state, and federal 

nondiscrimination or accessibility laws, regulations, or requirements. 

7. Comply with all applicable fair housing laws. 

 

The Development will be a 40- unit Senior project. The Development will set-aside 10% of its total units to 

comply under the Set-aside Preference specifically targeted for the Special Needs preference. This equates to a 

total of 4 units anticipated to be set-aside under this preference.  

For further clarification, during lease-up, properties which are not 100% Set-aside Preference are required to hold 

the number of designated Set-aside Preference units for a period of ninety days for leases to Set-aside Preference 

tenants.  After a ninety- day period these units can be leased to the general population meeting the properties 

leasing criteria. As identified units become vacant, they must be held open for a period of thirty days or until the 

number of required Set-aside Preference units have been leased.  After the thirty -day period the identified units 

may be leased to other qualified tenants, but the property must make good-faith efforts to lease the next available 

unit to a Set-aside Preference tenant until the required number of Set-aside Preference units are leased.   

The Development Owner, however, shall be under no obligation to consider a rental application from other than a 

low-income tenant under the provisions of Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

The Development Owner shall have the final authority to accept tenants into the Development pursuant to the fair     

housing laws applicable to the Development and the rules and regulations applied to all tenants; and 

That the Development Owner is not required to lease units to unqualified tenants pursuant to the rules applicable 

to the Development and under the provisions of Section 42 of the Internal Revenue Code. 

All parties to this Agreement will, at all times, comply with all applicable fair housing and disability laws.   

 

The Agreement shall expire the later of (i) the 1st day after the end of the initial LIHTC compliance period, (ii) the 

completion of the affordability period connected to any MHDC loan on the Development or (iii) on a date mutually 

agreed upon by all parties to extend beyond this date.  All parties acknowledge that circumstances may require a 

change in the Lead Referral Agency and/or Property Management Company during the life of the development, but 

the Development Owner is obligated to contact MHDC’s Asset Management department and seek approval from 

MHDC in the event a change is necessary.  The Development Owner and the Lead Referral Agency shall have the 

right to terminate this Agreement upon the giving of 180 days’ notice to the Parties.  The Development Owner’s 

and the Property Management Company’s termination rights will be governed by the terms of the Management 

Agreement for this development. 



 

 

 

Signature of the Development Owner:  

 

______________________________     Date:_________  

Crescent Associates, LP 

Crescent GP, LLC, its managing member 

By: Capstone Development Group, LLC, its member 

By: Jela Dilber, Vice President 

 

 

 

 

Signature of the Lead Referral Agency: 

 

 

 

________________________________Date:_____________  

Camden County Development Disability Resources 

Ed Thomas, Executive Director 

 

 

 

Signature of the Property Management Company: 

 

 

________________________________Date:_______________ 

Sansone Group 

Tim Sansone, Principal 

  



 

 

 

 

 

Appendix “A” 

  



 

 

205.968.  Facilities authorized — persons to be served, limitations, definitions. 

— 1.  As set forth in section 205.971, when a levy is approved by the voters, the 

governing body of any county or city not within a county of this state shall 

establish a board of directors.  The board of directors shall be a legal entity 

empowered to establish and/or operate a sheltered workshop as defined in section 

178.900, residence facilities, or related services, for the care or employment, or 

both, of persons with a disability.  The facility may operate at one or more 

locations in the county or city not within a county.  Once established, the board 

may in its own name engage in and contract for any and all types of services, 

actions or endeavors, not contrary to the law, necessary to the successful and 

efficient prosecution and continuation of the business and purposes for which it is 

created, and may purchase, receive, lease or otherwise acquire, own, hold, 

improve, use, sell, convey, exchange, transfer, and otherwise dispose of real and 

personal property, or any interest therein, or other assets wherever situated and 

may incur liability and may borrow money at rates of interest up to the market 

rate published by the Missouri division of finance.  The board shall be taken and 

considered as a "political subdivision" as the term is defined in section 70.600 for 

the purposes of sections 70.600 to 70.755. 

  2.  Services may only be provided for those persons defined as persons with a 

disability in section 178.900 and those persons defined as persons with a disability 

in this section whether or not employed at the facility or in the community, and 

for persons who are disabled due to developmental disability.  Persons having 

substantial functional limitations due to a mental illness as defined in section 

630.005 shall not be eligible for services under the provisions of sections 205.968 to 

205.972 except that those persons may participate in services under the provisions 

of sections 205.968 to 205.972.  All persons otherwise eligible for facilities or 

services under this section shall be eligible regardless of their age; except that, 

individuals employed in sheltered workshops must be at least sixteen years of 

age.  The board may, in its discretion, impose limitations with respect to 

individuals to be served and services to be provided.  Such limitations shall be 

reasonable in the light of available funds, needs of the persons and community to 

be served as assessed by the board, and the appropriateness and efficiency of 

combining services to persons with various types of disabilities. 



 

 

  3.  For the purposes of sections 205.968 to 205.972, the term 

  (1)  "Developmental disability" shall mean either or both paragraph (a) or (b) 

of this subsection: 

  (a)  A disability which is attributable to intellectual disability, cerebral palsy, 

autism, epilepsy, a learning disability related to a brain dysfunction or a similar 

condition found by comprehensive evaluation to be closely related to such 

conditions, or to require habilitation similar to that required for intellectually 

disabled persons; and 

  a.  Which originated before age eighteen; and 

  b.  Which can be expected to continue indefinitely; 

  (b)  A developmental disability as defined in section 630.005; 

  (2)  "Person with a disability" shall mean a person who is lower-range 

educable or upper-range trainable intellectually disabled or a person who has a 

developmental disability. 

 

(L. 1969 S.B. 40 § 1, A.L. 1975 H.B. 240, A.L. 1984 H.B. 1385, A.L. 1990 H.B. 1383, 

A.L. 1993 S.B. 366, A.L. 1995 H.B. 416, et al., A.L. 2011 H.B. 555 merged with H.B. 

648, A.L. 2014 H.B. 1064)  

 

 205.969.  Sheltered workshop program rules and regulations — board may 

provide residences or social centers. — 1.  The board may provide a sheltered 

workshop program for the county or city not within a county and as part of the 

program shall conduct work and developmental programs as provided by section 

178.910 pursuant to rules and standards developed and adopted by the 

department of elementary and secondary education. 

  2.  The board may provide places of residence and related activity or social 

centers for those eligible persons. 

(L. 1969 S.B. 40 § 2, A.L. 1975 H.B. 240, A.L. 1984 H.B. 1385, A.L. 1993 S.B. 366)  



 

 

 

205.970.  Board of directors, appointment, qualifications, terms, officers, powers 

and duties — vacancies and removal from office, procedure. — 1.  When 

approved by the voters pursuant to section 205.971, the governing body of the 

county or city not within a county shall appoint a board of directors consisting of 

a total of nine members, two of whom shall be related by blood or marriage 

within the third degree to a handicapped person as defined in section 205.968, and 

four of whom shall be public members.  At least seven of the board members shall 

be residents of the county or city not within a county where the facility is 

located.  After September 28, 1979, all board members shall be appointed to serve 

for a term of three years, except that of the first board appointed after September 

28, 1979, three members shall be appointed for one-year terms, three members for 

two-year terms and three members for three-year terms.  Board members may be 

reappointed.  The directors shall not receive compensation for their services, but 

may be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses. 

  2.  The administrative control and management of the facility shall rest solely 

with the board, and the board shall employ all necessary personnel, fix their 

compensation, and provide suitable quarters and equipment for the operation of 

the facility from funds made available for this purpose. 

  3.  Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, and irrespective of 

whether or not a county sheltered workshop or residence facility has been 

established, the board may contract to provide services relating in whole or in part 

to the services which the board may provide to handicapped persons as defined in 

this law and for such purpose may expend the tax funds or other funds. 

  4.  The board shall elect a chairman, vice chairman, treasurer, and such other 

officers as it deems necessary for its membership.  Before taking office, the 

treasurer shall furnish a surety bond, in an amount to be determined and in a 

form to be approved by the board, for the faithful performance of his duties and 

faithful accounting of all moneys that may come into his hands.  The treasurer 

shall enter into the surety bond with a surety company authorized to do business 

in Missouri, and the cost of such bond shall be paid by the board of directors. 



 

 

  5.  The board shall set rules for admission to the facility, and shall do all other 

things necessary to carry out the purposes of sections 205.968 to 205.972. 

  6.  The board may contract with any not-for-profit corporation including any 

corporation which is incorporated for the purpose of implementing the provisions 

of sections 178.900 to 178.970 for any common services, or for the common use of 

any property of either group. 

  7.  The board may accept any gift of property or money for the use and benefit 

of the facility, and the board is authorized to sell or exchange any such property 

which it believes would be to the benefit of the facility so long as the proceeds are 

used exclusively for facility purposes.  The board shall have exclusive control of 

all gifts, property or money it may accept; of all interest or other proceeds which 

may accrue from the investment of such gifts or money or from the sale of such 

property; of all tax revenues collected by the county on behalf of the facilities or 

services; and of all other funds granted, appropriated, or loaned to it by the 

federal government, the state, or its political subdivisions so long as these 

resources are used solely to benefit the facility or related services except those 

paid for transportation purposes under the provisions of section 94.645. 

  8.  Any board member may, following notice and an opportunity to be heard, 

be removed from office by a majority vote of the other members of the board for 

any of the following grounds: 

  (1)  Failure to attend five consecutive meetings, without good cause; 

  (2)  Conduct prejudicial to the good order and efficient operation of the facility 

or services; or 

  (3)  Neglect of duty.  The chairman of the board shall preside at such removal 

hearing, unless he or she is the person sought to be removed.  In which case the 

hearing shall be presided over by another member elected by the majority vote of 

the other board members.  All interested parties may present testimony and 

arguments at such hearing, and the witnesses shall be sworn by oath or 

affirmation before testifying.  Any interested party may, at his or her own 

expense, record the proceedings. 



 

 

  9.  Vacancies in the board occasioned by removals, resignations or otherwise 

shall be reported by the board chairman to the mayor's office of a city not within a 

county or the county commission or county executive officer and shall be filled in 

like manner as original appointments; except that, if the vacancy occurs during an 

unexpired term, the appointment shall be for only the unexpired portion of that 

term. 

  10.  Individual board members shall not be eligible for employment by the 

board within twelve months of termination of service as a member of the board. 

  11.  No person shall be employed by the board who is related within the third 

degree by blood or by marriage to any member of the board. 

 

(L. 1969 S.B. 40 § 3, A.L. 1975 H.B. 240, A.L. 1977 S.B. 359, A.L. 1979 H.B. 797, A.L. 

1984 H.B. 1385, A.L. 1993 S.B. 366)  

 

205.971.  Tax levy, approval, use. — The board of aldermen or other governing 

body of a city not within a county and the county commission or other governing 

body of the county, except for a county of the first classification having a charter 

form of government containing in part a city with a population of more than three 

hundred fifty thousand inhabitants, or a county of the first classification having a 

charter form of government with a population of at least nine hundred thousand 

inhabitants may, upon approval of a majority of the qualified voters of such city 

or county thereon, levy and collect a tax not to exceed four mills per dollar of 

assessed valuation upon all taxable property within the city or county for the 

purpose of establishing and maintaining the county sheltered workshop, 

residence, facility and/or related services.  The county commission or other 

governing body of a county of the first classification having a charter form of 

government containing in whole or part a city with a population of more than 

three hundred fifty thousand inhabitants, or a county of the first classification 

having a charter form of government with a population of at least nine hundred 

thousand inhabitants may, upon approval of a majority of the qualified voters of 

such county or city voting thereon, levy and collect a tax not to exceed two mills 

per dollar of assessed valuation upon all taxable property within such county or 



 

 

city for the purpose of establishing and maintaining the county or city sheltered 

workshop, residence, facility and/or related services.  The tax so levied shall be 

collected along with other county taxes, or in the case of a city not within a county, 

with other city taxes, in the manner provided by law.  All funds collected for this 

purpose shall be deposited in a special fund and shall be used for no other 

purpose.  Deposits in the fund shall be expended only upon approval of the 

board. 

 

(L. 1969 S.B. 40 § 4, A.L. 1975 H.B. 240, A.L. 1990 H.B. 1383, A.L. 1992 S.B. 630, A.L. 

1993 S.B. 366)  

 

 205.972.  Maximum tax — ballot form. — 1.  The tax may not be levied to exceed 

forty cents per each one hundred dollars assessed valuation therefor except for a 

county of the first classification having a charter form of government containing in 

whole or part a city with a population of more than three hundred fifty thousand 

inhabitants, or a county of the first classification having a charter form of 

government with a population of at least nine hundred thousand inhabitants 

voting thereon shall not levy a tax to exceed twenty cents per each one hundred 

dollars assessed valuation therefor. 

  2.  The question shall be submitted in substantially the following form: 

 

OFFICIAL BALLOT 

Shall ______ (name of county or city not within a county) 

establish, improve, (and) (or) maintain a sheltered workshop 

(and) (or) residence facility (and) (or) related services for 

developmentally disabled and handicapped persons, and for 

which the county or city shall levy a tax of ______ (insert exact 

amount to be voted upon) cents per each one hundred dollars 

assessed valuation therefor? 

☐ YES ☐ NO 

(L. 1969 S.B. 40 § 5, A.L. 1972 S.B. 449, A.L. 1975 H.B. 240, A.L. 1978 H.B. 971, A.L. 

1990 H.B. 1383, A.L. 1992 S.B. 630, A.L. 1993 S.B. 366) 


	Cover Page to Open Session
	Cover Page to Agenda
	Tentative Agenda for Open Session
	Cover Page to Open Session Minutes
	January 22, 2018 Open Session Board Minutes
	Cover Page to CLC Monthly Report
	CLC Monthly Report
	Cover Page to LAI Monthly Report
	LAI January 2018 external reports
	Cover Page to Support Coordination Report
	Support Coordination Report
	Cover Page to CARF
	Cover Page to Employment Report
	Employment Report
	Summary

	Cover Page to Agency Economic Report
	Agency Economic Report
	Cover Page to CC Statement
	December credit card statement invoices
	Cover Page to Resolutions
	Resolution 2018-8
	Resolution 2018-8 Attachment A
	Resolution 2018-9
	Resolution 2018-9 Attachment A
	Resolution 2018-10
	Resolution 2018-10 Attachment A
	Keystone Lease 2018
	Cover Page Facility Use Agreement Attachment A
	Facility Use Agreement Attachment A
	Addendum to Keystone Lease 2018

	Resolution 2018-11
	Resolution 2018-11 Attachment A
	clclease2018
	Addendum to CLC Lease 2018

	Resolution 2018-12
	Resolution 2018-12 Attachment A

